
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, May 18, 2020 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
Consistent with Executive Orders Nos. N-25-20, N-29-20, and N-63-20 from the Executive 
Department of the State of California and the Los Angeles County Health Official’s “Safer at 
Home” Order, this City Council meeting will not be physically open to the public as City 
Councilmembers will be teleconferencing into the meeting via Webex Communications. 
 
How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 
 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute and Inspiration) 
 
C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 
D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 

 
E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
http://www.lawndalecity.org/ASSETS/PDF/Corona/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lawndalecity.org/HTML/DEPTHTML/CCLERK/CCAgendasMinutes.htm


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
May 18, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 
F. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Items 1 through 3, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation. 
 
1. Cooperation Agreement for the City of Lawndale to Continue its Participation in  

the Los Angeles County Urban Community Development Block Grant Program 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2005-025 authorizing 
the execution of the Cooperation Agreement for the City of Lawndale to Continue its 
Participation in the Los Angeles County Urban Community Development Block Grant 
Program with Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA). 

 
2. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2005-024, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $805,724.43. 

 
3. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – May 4, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

G. ADMINISTRATION 
 
4. Update on the Use of the Best Western Hotel as a Temporary Homeless Shelter 

through “Project Roomkey” 
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file this report, and provide direction 
to staff as appropriate. 

 
5. Consideration of Further Modifications to City Operations Due to the COVID-19  

Pandemic 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) cancel the Memorial Day Ceremony 
scheduled for May 25, 2020, and direct staff to proceed with plans for a virtual ceremony 
by video production; and (b) cancel the Health, Safety & Pet Fair scheduled for June 6, 
2020, and direct staff to pursue a possible vaccination and licensing clinic by appointment 
only, on a date to be determined. 

 
6. Reconsideration of Administrative Paid Leave Status for Part-Time Employees  

during the COVID-19 Pandemic 
Recommendation: that the City Council direct staff to (a) discontinue paid administrative 
leave for all employees; (b) review its current allocation of part-time staff members and 
determine which employees should continue to be employed; and (c) initiate lay-off 
procedures for those employees without work in compliance with City Personnel Rules 
and Regulations and applicable Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

H. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

I. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

7. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
May 18, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

 

J. CLOSED SESSION  
 
8. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case 
against Best Western Plus South Bay Hotel and the County of Los Angeles. 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
June 1, 2020 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 
 

It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on May 18, 2020 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1





























Resolution No. CC-2005-025 
Approving Participation in the Los Angeles Urban County Community Development Block Grant Program 1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2005-025 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA APPROVING PARTICIPATION IN THE 
LOS ANGELES URBAN COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR  TO 
SIGN A COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF 
LOS ANGELES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lawndale desires to participate in the Los Angeles Urban County 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the qualification period beginning July 1, 
2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to authorize the execution of a Participating City Cooperation 
Agreement with the County of Los Angeles in order to receive said CDBG funds. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council approves of the County of Los Angeles Participating City 
Cooperation Agreement between the City of Lawndale and the County of Los Angeles for the time 
period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024, and self-renewing thereafter. 
 
 SECTION 2. The City Council authorizes the Mayor, or his/her designee, to execute any and 
all documents necessary for participation in the Los Angeles Urban County CDBG Program on behalf 
of the City of Lawndale. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 18th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
  



Resolution No. CC-2005-025 
Approving Participation in the Los Angeles Urban County Community Development Block Grant Program 2 

ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
 
I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2005-025 at 
a regular meeting of said Council held on the 18th day of May, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem      
James H. Osborne      
Pat Kearney      
Daniel Reid      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 
 



2





Claims and Demands Paid By Check:

Check Date Beginning Ending Aggregate Total
4/30/2020 199479 199518 582,857.70

5/7/2020 199519 199542 222,866.73

Total Checks 805,724.43

Claims and Demands Paid By Electronic ACH Transfer:

Date Name of Payee Description Amount

Total ACH Payments 0.00

Total Audited Claims and Demands Paid 805,724.43

City of Lawndale
Summary of Audited Claims and Demands

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Check Number



Date:
Time:
Page:

Check Number Amount

199479 1,731.15
199480 3,361.00
199481 431.00
199482 160.00
199483 2,521.59
199484 100.00
199485 2,739.88
199486 164.84
199487 612.40
199488 1,551.20
199489 586.36
199490 537.62
199491 1,500.00
199492 173.01
199493 1,390.00
199494 596.97
199495 515,957.76
199496 102.41
199497 100.00
199498 100.00
199499 40,551.34
199500 499.87
199501 80.37
199502 44.01
199503 111.14
199504 50.00
199505 260.00
199506 100.00
199507 1,479.61
199508 239.86
199509 106.89
199510 103.21
199511 1,695.70
199512 310.81
199513 49.99
199514 1,224.14
199515 29.19
199516 71.05
199517 1,047.96
199518 385.37

40 582,857.70

40 582,857.70

40 582,857.70

Total Payments: Bank Total (excluding void checks):

Total Payments: Grand Total (excluding void checks):

04/30/2020 Printed 0480 VISTA PAINT GRAFFITI SUPPLIES

Total Checks: Checks Total (excluding void checks):

04/30/2020 Printed 2883 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT SC UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT
04/30/2020 Printed 0479 VISION SERVICE PLAN VISION PREMIUM APR-20

04/30/2020 Printed 3672-FLEET U.S. BANK VOYAGER FLEET SYS CREDIT CARD PAYMENT
04/30/2020 Printed 3672-FIN U.S. BANK CREDIT CARD PAYMENT

04/30/2020 Printed 4142 TIME WARNER CABLE CABLE - CITY HALL
04/30/2020 Printed 0462 TODD PIPE & SUPPLY-HAWTHORNE PLUMBING PARTS-CITY HALL

04/30/2020 Printed 0849 THE SAFEMART OF SO CAL INC 6 GATE LOCKS
04/30/2020 Printed 2002 THE STANDARD, UNIT 22 INSURANCE PREMIUMS

04/30/2020 Printed 0439 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. UTILITIES ELECTRICITY
04/30/2020 Printed 0440 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO. UTILITY GAS CHARGES

04/30/2020 Printed 6680 SCOTT SMITH PLANNING COMMISSION STIPEND
04/30/2020 Printed 6034 SOUTH COAST MECHANICAL INC HVAC REPAIR FOR CITY HALL

04/30/2020 Printed 7241 CARLA L ROSE-PRYOR PLANNING COMMISSION STIPEND
04/30/2020 Printed 2862 MARC SALDANA INSTRUCTOR SVCS - SR. TAI CHI

04/30/2020 Printed 0384 PEP BOYS BRAKE FLUID & ANTIFREEZE FLUID
04/30/2020 Printed 6123 PRUDENTIAL OVERALL SUPPLY PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE CREW

04/30/2020 Printed 4566 MYERS & SONS HI WAY SAFETY INC ANNUAL STREET SIGNS
04/30/2020 Printed 0367 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE SUPPLIES - CSD

04/30/2020 Printed 1050 UFFE MOLLER PLANNING COMMISSION STIPEND
04/30/2020 Printed 6144 MV TRANSPORTATION INC LAWNDALE BEAT FIXED ROUTE TRAN

04/30/2020 Printed 0337 MANAGED HEALTH NETWORK EMP. ASSIST PROGRAM - APR-20
04/30/2020 Printed 6134 JOHN MARTINEZ PLANNING COMMISSION STIPEND

04/30/2020 Printed 7466 HAWTHORNE ELECTRIC SUPPLY ELECTRICAL & LIGHTING SUPPLIES
04/30/2020 Printed 0308 LOS ANGELES COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

04/30/2020 Printed 0441 GOLDEN STATE WATER CO. WATER USAGE SERVICES
04/30/2020 Printed 7513 ELIZABETH HAMILTON RESERVATION DEP REFUND

04/30/2020 Printed 6886 EMPIRE CLEANING SUPPLIES MAINTENANCE CLEANING SUPPLIES
04/30/2020 Printed 7512 ANA GILLIAM RESERVATION DEP REFUND

04/30/2020 Printed 5362 JOSHUA DUNCAN INSTRUCTOR SVCS-MARTIAL ARTS
04/30/2020 Printed 5876 DUTHIE POWER SERVICES CITY HALL BACKUP GENERATOR SVC

04/30/2020 Printed 0389 DELTA DENTAL INS DENTAL PREMIUM
04/30/2020 Printed 5702 DIV OF THE STATE ARCHITECT 1ST QTR 2020

04/30/2020 Printed 3886 SIRLEY CUEVAS PLANNING COMMISSION STIPEND
04/30/2020 Printed 0216 DELTA DENTAL DENTAL INSURANCE PREMIUMS

04/30/2020 Printed 4333 CALIF BLDG STANDARDS COMMISSIO 1ST QTR SURCHARGE & RETAINER
04/30/2020 Printed 0190 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENTS, INC INSURANCE APR-20

04/30/2020 Printed 7511 MARIA BELTRAN RESERVATION SEC DEP REFUND
04/30/2020 Printed 7507 CYNTHIA BROCKMAN-COLEMAN RESERVATION DEP REFUND

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A Checks
04/30/2020 Printed 0372C AT & T - CALNET3 PHONE CHARGES-3/13/20-4/12/20

Check Date Status Void/Stop Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Check Description

Check Register Report

04/30/2020
12:53 PM

City of Lawndale BANK: WELLS FARGO BANK N.A 1



City of Lawndale

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck Number Status Amount

BANK: 

Vendor Number Vendor Name Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A 1Page:

 2:56 pmTime:

05/06/2020Date:

Void/Stop Date

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A Checks

 190.00COMMUNITY OUTREACH SUPPLIES101 ENTERPRISES FOUNDATION7514Printed05/07/2020 199519

 4,708.10WNTR-PROCESSING FEES-COVID19ACTIVE NETWORK, LLC 6211Printed05/07/2020 199520

 1,108.24SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD SERVICESALL CITY MANAGEMENT SVCS, INC0112Printed05/07/2020 199521

 924.00ALARM MONITORING SERVICESAM-TEC SECURITY6369Printed05/07/2020 199522

 14.10LONG DISTANCE SERVICESAT & T0115Printed05/07/2020 199523

 12,633.12NTWK MAINT/COMPUTER SUP MAR-20BERICOM IT & DESIGN0613Printed05/07/2020 199524

 27,363.95BUILDING AND SAFETY SERVICESCOUNTY OF LA DEPT OF PUBLIC WK0219Printed05/07/2020 199525

 4,031.47CALTRANS TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTDEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION0220Printed05/07/2020 199526

 155.24ANIMAL CONTROL SVCS-MARCH 2020DEPT OF ANIMAL CARE & CONTROL0217Printed05/07/2020 199527

 83.58PHONE CHARGES- 4/19 - 5/18/20FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS6636Printed05/07/2020 199528

 7,381.50AB939 CONSULTING SERVICESH F & H CONSULTANTS, LLC3377Printed05/07/2020 199529

 16,342.40WATER FILLING STATIONS FOR PARMOST DEPENDABLE FOUNTAINS INC7408Printed05/07/2020 199530

 50.00RANDOM DRUG SCREENOCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS7227Printed05/07/2020 199531

 74.86OFFICE SUPPLIES - PWDOFFICE DEPOT0367Printed05/07/2020 199532

 140,172.39INGLEWOOD AVE ST. IMPROVEMENTPALP, INC.1283Printed05/07/2020 199533

 39.57UNIFORM CLEANING SERVICESPRUDENTIAL OVERALL SUPPLY6123Printed05/07/2020 199534

 2,142.66COPIER LEASE / MAINTENANCE SVCRICOH USA INC5895Printed05/07/2020 199535

 549.82SCANNER FOR FINANCE DEPARTMENTSHI6379Printed05/07/2020 199536

 1,136.00IRRIGATION MAIN LINE REPAIRSOUTH BAY LANDSCAPING INC4533Printed05/07/2020 199537

 1,834.01UTILITIES ELECTRICITYSOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO.0439Printed05/07/2020 199538

 766.11CREDIT CARD PAYMENTU.S. BANK 3672-CMDPrinted05/07/2020 199539

 404.99CREDIT CARD PAYMENTU.S. BANK 3672-MSDPrinted05/07/2020 199540

 210.62GRAFFITI PAINT & SUPPLIESVISTA PAINT0480Printed05/07/2020 199541

 550.00ANNUAL INSPECTION&TESTING-HOODWEST COAST FIRE SERVICES INC7147Printed05/07/2020 199542

 222,866.73Checks Total (excluding void checks):24Total Checks:

 222,866.73Bank Total (excluding void checks):24Total Payments:

Grand Total (excluding void checks):Total Payments: 24  222,866.73



MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

May 4, 2020 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 14717
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez,
Councilmember James H. Osborne, Councilmember Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Daniel Reid

Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Kevin M. 
Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Los Angeles County 
Sheriff's Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services 
Director Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human 
Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director 
Michael Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos. 

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Reid led the flag salute.

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

Captain Allen summarized recent law enforcement activities.

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

• Pam London, Resident, spoke about and in opposition to “Project Roomkey” happening in
Lawndale.

E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

The City Council responded generally to the comments, but did not request placement of any issues
on a future meeting agenda.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the
Agenda
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

2. Notice of Completion for Inglewood Avenue Improvement Project
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) accept the Inglewood Avenue Improvement
Project; (b) direct Staff to file the Notice of Completion; and (c) direct staff to begin the
Thirty-Five (35) day claims period and release the project retention.

3



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
May 4, 2020 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

3. Routine Records Destruction 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2005-023, approving 
the requests from Administrative Services/Human Resources for Authorization to destroy 
routine records as listed in exhibits of the Resolution. 

 
4. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2005-022, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $193,361.81. 

 
5. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – April 20, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

6. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Special Meeting – April 23, 2020 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 

 
Councilmember Kearney inquired about the cost and savings involved with the Completion for 
Inglewood Avenue Improvement Project. 
 
A lengthy dialogue ensued between staff and Council regarding future projects, the reasons for 
the limited cost savings on the Inglewood Avenue Improvement Project, and roadwork on shared 
streets. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Reid to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
7. Adopting the 2020 Los Angeles County Fire Codes by Reference 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1171-20, adopting the 2020 Los Angeles County Fire Codes by Reference. 

 
Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the proposed adoption of the 2020 Los 
Angeles County Fire Codes by Reference. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles opened the public hearing at 6:52 p.m. 
 
The public hearing was opened and closed immediately at 6:52 p.m. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Kearney to approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1171-20, adopting the 2020 Los Angeles County Fire Codes by Reference was seconded 
by Mayor Pro Tem Suarez and carried by a vote of 5-0, following City Attorney Israel’s 
reading of the title of Ordinance No. 1171-20. 
 

H. ADMINISTRATION 
 
8. South Bay Workforce Investment Board (SBWIB) Appointment – Business  

Private Sector Representative 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
May 4, 2020 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) review the submitted Statement of Interest 
from Mr. Frank Rodriguez, as supported by the SBWIB; (b) re-affirm the SBWIB’s 
nomination of Mr. Frank Rodriguez as the City of Lawndale’s SBWIB representative on 
the Business Private Industry Council for a term of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2024 and 
direct staff to provide that name to the SBWIB for the Inglewood Chamber of Commerce’ 
final approval; or Options (c) and (d) as follows; (c) direct staff to open up nominations 
for additional applications including advertising the opening on the City website and City 
social media platforms; and (d) bring the nomination applications to an upcoming City 
Council meeting and provide direction to staff to provide a name to the SBWIB for the 
Inglewood Chamber of Commerce’ final approval, to fill the upcoming vacancy on the 
City of Lawndale’s SBWIB Business Private Industry Council seat for a term of July 1, 
2020 to June 30, 2024. 

 
City Manager Kevin M. Chun reported on the proposed South Bay Workforce Investment Board 
(SBWIB) Appointment. 

 
A motion by Mayor Pullen-Miles to re-affirm and appoint the SBWIB’s nomination of Mr. 
Frank Rodriguez as the City of Lawndale’s SBWIB representative on the Business Private 
Industry Council for a term of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2024 and direct staff to provide that 
name to the SBWIB for the Inglewood Chamber of Commerce’ final approval was seconded 
by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 
9. Billboard Subcommittee Selection for Consideration of Two Billboard Sign  

Proposals by Lawndale Media, LLC 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) determine that the proposed action is exempt 
from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15378 of 
the CEQA Guidelines: and (b) appoint two (2) City Councilmembers to a Billboard 
Subcommittee to review two billboard proposals. 

 
Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the proposed Billboard 
Subcommittee Selection for Consideration of Two Billboard Sign Proposals by Lawndale Media, 
LLC. 

 
Councilmember Kearney and Councilmember Reid both volunteered to serve again on this 
particular subcommittee. 

 
City Council appointed Councilmember Kearney and Councilmember Reid to serve on the 
Billboard Subcommittee for Consideration of Two Billboard Sign Proposals by Lawndale 
Media, LLC, via unanimous consent. 
 
10. Budget Update for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the Quarterly Budget Report as 
of March 31, 2020. 

 
Finance Director Marla Pendleton reported on the proposed Budget Update for the Quarter Ended 
March 31, 2020. 
 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
May 4, 2020 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

Mayor Pullen-Miles inquired as to how the point-of-purchase was identified on an online sale.  
Director Pendleton responded that it was dependent on the endpoint of the delivery or package. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Kearney to receive and file the Quarterly Budget Report as of 
March 31, 2020 was seconded by Councilmember Reid and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 
11. Considerations of Further Modifications to City Operations Due to the COVID-19  

Pandemic 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) provide direction to staff regarding 
conducting as usual, modified, postponement, or cancellation of the Memorial Day 
Ceremony scheduled for May 25, 2020, and the Health, Safety and Pet Fair scheduled for 
June 6, 2020; and (b) approve the suspension of the Lawndale Beat Transit Service as of 
May 4th until further notice, and reinstate the Lawndale Special Transit Service as soon 
as possible subject to the installation of safety equipment and protocols for rider safety. 

 
City Manager Kevin M. Chun reported on the consideration of Further Modifications to City 
Operations Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Suarez inquired about legislation regarding COVID-19 and any protections from 
lawsuits if a City holds an event.  City Attorney Tiffany Israel responded that legislation and 
direction was ongoing. 
 
A lengthy dialogue ensued between Council and staff regarding potentially modifying, 
postponing or cancelling the Memorial Day Ceremony scheduled for May 25, 2020, and the 
Health, Safety and Pet Fair scheduled for June 6, 2020.  The discussion shifted to revisit potential 
modifications, postponements or cancelation for the Memorial Day Ceremony and the Health, 
Safety and Pet Fair at the May 18th City Council meeting. 
 
A lengthy dialogue ensued between Council and staff regarding suspension of the Lawndale Beat 
Transit Service, potential reallocation of transportation funding, and other transit related 
improvements. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Reid to revisit potential modifications, postponements or 
cancelation for the Memorial Day Ceremony and the Health, Safety and Pet Fair at the May 
18th City Council meeting  and approve the suspension of the Lawndale Beat Transit Service 
as of May 4th until further notice, and reinstate the Lawndale Special Transit Service as soon 
as possible subject to the installation of safety equipment and protocols for rider safety was 
seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 
12. Update on the Use of the Best Western Hotel as a Temporary Homeless Shelter  

through “Project Roomkey” 
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file this report, and provide 
direction to staff as appropriate. 

 
Municipal Services Director Micheal Reyes provided an update on the use of the Best Western Hotel 
as a Temporary Homeless Shelter through “Project Roomkey”. 
 
A lengthy dialogue ensued between Council and staff regarding “Project Roomkey”. 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
May 4, 2020 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

 
A motion by Mayor Pullen-Miles to receive and file the Update on the Use of the Best Western 
Hotel as a Temporary Homeless Shelter through “Project Roomkey” was seconded by 
Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
City Manager Kevin M. Chun had nothing to report. 
 

J. ITEMS FROM COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

13. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
Councilmember Osborne had nothing to report. 
 
Councilmember Reid had nothing to report. 
 
Councilmember Kearney spoke about Lawndale residents who recently passed away. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Suarez had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles attended an emergency conference with Los Angeles County on “Project 
Roomkey”.  Mayor Pullen-Miles explained what transpired during the meeting. 
 

K. CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 8:08 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session. 
 
14. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case 
against Best Western Plus South Bay Hotel and the County of Los Angeles. 

 
 At 9:09 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 
 
City Attorney Tiffany Israel reported the City Council met in Closed Session to discuss the 
one item listed on the Closed Session agenda. The City Council was updated on item number 
14 and there was no reportable action taken. 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 9:10 p.m. 

 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
May 4, 2020 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 5/18/2020 
 



4





5































6









7



8


	20-05-18 reg.agn
	01. 2020 CDBG Agreement Resolution
	02. Warrants
	Warrant Summary - 2020.05.18.pdf
	20.05.18

	Check Register - 2020.04.30.pdf
	Sheet1


	03. 20-05-04.min
	04. Project Roomkeyn Update
	05. COVID-19 Further Modifications
	06. Administrative Paid Leave Status for Part-Time Employees
	07. Councilmembers Report of Attendance
	08. CS - Lit

	Back to Agenda: 


